
Property / Regeneration Briefing  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Property / Regeneration Briefing to be held 
as follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
Tom Stannard 

Chief Executive  

 
DATE: Monday, 27 March 2023 

 
TIME:  3.00 pm 

 
VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 

this meeting.  
 

AGENDA 

 
1   Apologies for absence  

 

 

2   Declarations of interest  

 

 

3   Items for Decision - Part 1 (Open to the Public)  

 

 

3a City Region Sustainable Transport Settlement (CRSTS) Update and 
Strategic Maintenance Fund Priorities  
 

(Pages 3 - 13) 

3b Revision of Rental and Disposal Charges for Gardens, Garage Sites 
and Minor Rights of Way/Access Agreements  

 

(Pages 14 - 19) 

4   Public Briefing Items  
 

The following items are for the primary purpose of providing members 
of the public with all relevant information on the respective matters, 

other than those elements, which in accordance with the relevant 
sections of the Local Government Act 1972, remain confidential and 
require that any arising decision is taken in Part 2 of the agenda. 

 

 

4a Transfer of Affordable Homes to Dérive RP (also see Item 6b)  

 

 

4b Land at Hanover Court, Broughton (also see Item 6a)  
 

(Pages 20 - 30) 

5   Exclusion of the Public  

 

 

6   Items for Decision - Part 2 (Closed to the Public)  

 

 

6a Land at Hanover Court, Broughton  (Pages 31 - 33) 

Public Document Pack



 

 
6b Transfer of Affordable Homes to Dérive RP  

 

(Pages 34 - 36) 

7   Any other business  

 

 

 
Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3013 

Mike Relph, Senior Democratic Services Advisor E-Mail: mike.relph@salford.gov.uk 



 1 

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No. 

 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE  

 

PROPERTY & REGENERATION (FOR DECISION) ON 13th March 2023 

 

TITLE: CITY REGION SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORT SETTLEMENT UPDATE 
AND STRATEGIC MAINTENANCE FUND PRIORITIES 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
Members are recommended to:  

 
1. Note the update on the City Region Sustainable Transport Settlement funding 
2. Approve the allocation of funding for Strategic Maintenance priorities set out at 

Annex 1. 
3. Approve the budget allocation of £3.143m per year consolidated highways 

maintenance funding for the five years of the CRSTS funding settlement, 
delegating programme approval of a rolling programme of projects for delivery 
to the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 

This report outlines the current position and opportunities for Salford in the CRSTS 
funding programme over the next 5 years. It sets out the challenges facing the 
programme and mitigation measures. The report sets out priorities for approval 

against the Strategic Highways Maintenance programme at Annex 1. Members are 
recommended to note the update on the City Region Sustainable Transport 

Settlement funding and approve the allocation of funding for strategic maintenance 
priorities set out at Annex 1. Members are also asked to approve the budget 
allocation of £3.143m per year consolidated highways maintenance funding for the 

five years of the CRSTS funding settlement, delegating approval of a rolling 
programme of projects for delivery to the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable 

Development.  

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
Report to Property and Regeneration Briefing 8th August 2022: 

2022/23 CRSTS HIGHWAYS MAINTENANCE PROGRAMME 
Report to Property and Regeneration Briefing 23rd January 2023: 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3a



 2 

POTHOLE ACTION FUND SCHEMES 2022/23 AND 2023/24 
CRSTS Funding Settlement Letter for Greater Manchester dated 01/04/2022 

 

KEY DECISION: YES 

 

DETAILS: 
 
1. Background 

 
The Department for Transport (DfT) announced the award of the City Region 

Sustainable Transport Settlement (CRSTS) funds to the Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority (GMCA) on 1st April 2022. This is a five-year funding settlement 

from the Department of Transport to GMCA and consolidates a number of annual 
funding programmes into a single award. This report updates on Salford’s allocations 
within the programme and seeks approval to allocate funding to prioritised schemes 

for the strategic highway maintenance programme. 
 
2. Salford Funding allocations 

 
A list of schemes for delivery using the CRSTS funding was agreed with DfT and 

published on 29th July 20221. The key projects detailed in Salford are as follows with 
the initial budget allocation where available of CRSTS funding to be spent in Salford 

indicated: 
 
Bus Programme 

 Initial phased delivery of Salford Crescent-Media City UK Quality Bus Transit 
Corridor (TfGM-lead) £23.4m 

 Electric Buses to support bus franchising (TfGM-lead) 

 GM Bus Pinch Points programme (TfGM-lead) 
Rail Programme 

 Swinton Rail Station Access for all lift (TfGM-lead) £2.1m 

 Development of new rail station proposals across GM - Little Hulton is one 

potential location in the list of priorities under consideration (TfGM-lead) 
Future Metrolink Programme 

 Rapid Transit Quays to Crescent line (TfGM-lead) – Anticipated priority within 
a wider budget to develop plans for future Metrolink lines across GM. 

Commitment to seek a Powers application for 1 scheme and pre-Powers 
development for 2 schemes is included in the programme. 

Metrolink Renewals Programme 

 Funding for Metrolink Renewals work across GM (TfGM-lead) 
Active Travel Programme 

 Allocation to fund approved but unfunded schemes in the current Mayor’s 
Challenge Fund Programme 

Streets for All Programme 

                                                 
1 City Region Sustainable Transport Settlements: confirmed delivery plans and funding allocations - 

GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 

Page 4

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/city-region-sustainable-transport-settlements-confirmed-delivery-plans-and-funding-allocations
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/city-region-sustainable-transport-settlements-confirmed-delivery-plans-and-funding-allocations


 3 

 Streets For All scheme: Cos Cos, incorporating new active travel routes and 
access to development site £4m 

 Streets For All scheme: Salford Quays Northern Access, Scheme provides 

new access to development site to support active travel and bus services 
£4.5m 

Highway Maintenance Programme 

 Strategic Maintenance funding for the Key Route Network £4.5m 

 £3.143m per year for 5 years - Salford share of the Gm £175m consolidated 
highway maintenance package. This covers Needs, incentive and pothole 
funding elements as previously defined by the DfT in past years capital 

funding settlements. 
Minor Works and Road Safety / Development Programme 

 £796,000 Integrated Transport Block Funding – Salford share of funding for 
22/23 year only 

 
Where schemes are indicated as TfGM-lead they will appoint and manage the 
resources needed to undertake design and delivery of these programme elements. 

Salford officers will be updated periodically on these.  One exception is the Salford 
Crescent-Media City UK Quality Bus Transit Corridor where TfGM will act as the 
scheme promotor, co-ordinating the business case with the wider GM programme. 

Salford will act as delivery partner to develop the highway interventions covered by 
the Quality Bus corridor proposal in line with the strategic objectives in the wider 

programme working closely with TfGM. 
 
There are other funds in the wider CRSTS programme (e.g. bus stops/Electric 

Vehicle charging) where Salford might expect to receive a share of the investment as 
TfGM-lead programmes are developed further. 

 
Salford priorities for the consolidated highways maintenance package £3.143m in the 
first year of the programme 2022/23 have already been agreed with members via the 

reports listed in the background papers for this report. 
 
3. Strategic Highways Maintenance allocation 

 
All 10 districts have been allocated £4.5m of CRSTS funding to deliver on strategic 

maintenance priorities across their highway assets. In Salford this funding will be 
assigned to improve the condition of the Key Route Network (KRN).  

 
The Key Route Network (KRN) is a series of highways that provide strategic 
transportation links that are critical to support public transport and economic activity 

across Greater Manchester. 
 

Growth in jobs and homes is anticipated to place additional pressure on the KRN 
within the Salford council area from buses, HGVs and car traffic throughout the day, 
and particularly at peak periods. 

 
SCC’s highway maintenance programme is designed to help interrupt the current 

cycle of decline in SCC’s highway network. The investment plan is based on lifecycle 
planning and a deterioration model following the Highway Maintenance Efficiency 
Programme (HMEP) principals. 

Page 5



 4 

 
To accommodate growth, and to do this sustainably, the KRN will need to support 
traffic movements, especially in relation to buses. The bus operators have identified 

journey time reliability and ride quality as major issues for passengers, and the 
condition of the KRN impacts on both issues. 

 
By undertaking strategic maintenance of the identified sections of the KRN in a timely 
manner, a reduction is expected in the amount of future patching required, and this 

will also help reduce the peak time delays currently experienced by motorists and 
bus passengers. Strategic maintenance also has the potential to reduce claims for 

vehicle damage from potholes. 
 
The proposed priority list of schemes is set out in Annex 1 of this report and these 

have been identified and prioritised by the Asset Management team using their 
‘Strategic Weighting Calculation HIS3’ tool that assimilates and weights the following 

data for each section of the KRN: 
 

 Condition – based on Surface Condition for National Network of Roads 

(SCANNER) surveys and Sideways Coefficient Route Investigation Machine 
(SCRIM) skid resistance surveys 

 Costs - based on accident data, insurance data, need for reactive 
maintenance 

 Importance – based on road hierarchy and need to deliver a resilient network 

 Usage – based on vehicle speeds, traffic flows, and nearby population 
 

The long list of schemes is currently valued at above the available funding and 
priorities will be reviewed following the winter season to ensure the funding is 

directed to the sections of highway most in need of repair. Costs will also be kept 
under review as individual schemes are priced for delivery to account for any 
inflationary pressure that may impact delivery. Any projects not delivered with this 

funding will remain on the list for delivery as part of future funding settlements. 
Contracts for the delivery of these schemes will be brought for approval at 

procurement board on a case-by-case basis as the programme is developed for 
delivery.  
 

An exception to the prioritisation has been made for the A5063 Trafford Road where 
resurfacing on this part of the KRN has been completed as part of the wider 

improvement project this financial year. This forms one mitigation measure 
developed in discussion with TfGM in respect of the wider infrastructure programme 
budget pressures. The £700k additional funding allocation supports the completion of 

the full resurfacing of Trafford Road as part of the wider works contract ensuring that 
the highway asset is left in the best possible condition and extending the time before 

further disruptive surfacing work will be needed. 
 
4. Highways Maintenance Programme 

 

The five-year CRSTS funding settlement provides the opportunity to look beyond an 

annual process for setting budgets for highway maintenance purposes. The CRSTS 
fund includes an allocation of £3,143,000 per year for 5 years as Salford’s share of 
the £175m consolidated highway maintenance package. GM Wider Leadership team 

Page 6



 5 

confirmed this split of funding for Salford on 13th April 2022 following the award of 
CRSTS. In 2022/23 Salford members have approved the following split of funds 
across a wider range of schemes via the two reports listed in the background 

documents for this report: 
 

Category Allocation 

Local Safety Schemes £490,000 

Structures & Bridges £600,000 

Highway Maintenance £90,000 

Schemes to Assist Walking and Cycling £855,000 

Other Minor Works  £10,000 

Community Committee £400,000 

Pothole Action Fund (via separate report) £698,000 

TOTAL 2022/23 Allocation £3,143,000 

 
In future years it is proposed that the budget will be allocated across the same 

headings with scheme programme approval delegated to the Lead Member for 
Planning and Sustainable Development. This will allow a rolling programme of 

schemes under the above headings to be identified based on established monthly 
reporting for minor maintenance works and an annually reviewed programme list for 
larger schemes. 

 
This report seeks budget approval for £3.143m per year for the full five-year period of 

the CRSTS programme which commenced in 2022/23. Individual projects and 
maintenance programme contracts will remain subject to separate approvals in line 
with the Council’s procurement governance processes and Constitution. 

 
5. Delivery Challenges 

 

The delivery of infrastructure programmes has become significantly more challenging 
since the CRSTS funding bid was compiled two years ago and there are several 

factors that will impact on delivery including: 
 

 Construction inflation has outpaced the UK CPI inflation rate with government 

figures indicating a c30% jump in construction material prices between 2021 
and 20222. These increases mean that the estimates for work included in the 

programme need to be uplifted but the government has indicated in the 
funding award letter that ‘Any cost overruns must be met locally and no 

additional HMG funding from this settlement will be provided to support your 
CRSTS programmes’. 

 The construction sector has record vacancies with the ONS3 indicating record 

levels of vacancies in the sector with 48,000 in Sept-Nov 2022. Suppliers are 
having to offer higher wages and alongside material cost increases this is 

feeding into increased prices in the sector. There is record demand in the 

                                                 
2 Monthly Statistics of Building Materials and Components - data.gov.uk 
3 UK Job Vacancies (thousands) - Construction - Office for National Statistics 

Page 7

https://www.data.gov.uk/dataset/75ee36ed-21f7-4d7b-9e7c-f5bf4546145d/monthly-statistics-of-building-materials-and-components
https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/employmentandemployeetypes/timeseries/jp9l/lms


 6 

sector with one of the largest infrastructure projects in Europe, HS24 indicating 
that c30,000 people are now working on this project. 

 The City Council has lost a significant number of experienced technical staff in 

the last year due to retirement and people moving for significantly higher 
salaries in the private sector. To date it hasn’t been possible to recruit 

replacements for experienced staff meaning that delivery of the programme 
will rely on support from technical consultants to cover these vacant roles in 
the short term. 

 The CRSTS funding award is conditional on walking and cycling schemes 
meeting the high standards set by Active Travel England with the threat of 

funding claw-back if the requirements of Local Transport Note 1/20 are not 
achieved. 

 The complexity of some projects requires significant diversion works to 

existing service equipment. Recent experience indicates the capacity from the 
utility companies to undertake this work is limited by national demand and this 

can impact on proposed delivery programmes and costs. 

 The funding award from government is less than GMCA bid for and therefore 

the funding available for scheme delivery has been cut on several 
projects/programmes including the district Streets for All schemes. 

 
6. Mitigation measures 

 

Officers are working on several measures to help manage the delivery challenges 
detailed above including: 
 

 Reviewing cost estimates to ensure the best assumptions are made around 
inflation as scheme design progresses. 

 Working with TfGM and our consultant supply chain to help support the 
resource challenge and revisiting our approach to external recruitment to 

vacant posts and reviewing opportunities for training more graduates and 
apprentices. 

 Value engineering and reviewing the scope of proposed schemes to help 

ensure that these match available funding.  

 Working closely with TfGM through design reviews to independently review 

schemes against Active Travel England guidance. 

 Working closely with statutory undertakers through the design process to 

design out service diversions where possible and inform designs via 
appropriate site investigation work. 

 Working with developer partners where appropriate to leverage match funding 

to support schemes and investigate ways to reduce delivery risks 
 

 
7. Conclusion 

 

Members are recommended to: 
 

1. Note the update on the City Region Sustainable Transport Settlement funding 

                                                 
4 Latest update sees HS2 workforce rise to nearly 30,000 

Page 8

https://mediacentre.hs2.org.uk/news/latest-update-sees-hs2-workforce-rise-to-nearly-30-000


 7 

2. Approve the allocation of funding for Strategic Maintenance priorities set out at 
Annex 1. 

3. Approve the budget allocation of £3.143m per year consolidated highways 

maintenance funding for the five years of the CRSTS funding settlement, 
delegating programme approval of a rolling programme of projects for delivery 

to the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development. 
 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  
Greater Manchester Transport Strategy 2040 
Salford’s vision and ‘Great Eight’ priorities 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 
Our transport network can be a barrier to equal access for all.  The improvements 
delivered through this programme of investment in our infrastructure will help to 

deliver improvements top our network for a wide range of users. 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  
High: The process of setting budgets for the CRSTS funding settlement which took 
place over a number of years means that inflationary pressures in the construction 
sector have increased substantially since the funding allocations were bid for and 

agreed. The government funding letter to Greater Manchester confirms ‘Any cost 
overruns must be met locally and no additional HMG funding from this settlement will 

be provided to support your CRSTS programmes’. This means that the work funded 
by the programme will have to be reduced in scope as inflation pressures and other 
delivery challenges highlighted in the report continues to erode what can be delivered 

with the funding allocated through this process. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Shared Legal Service 
The Greater Manchester partners have worked collectively and with Government to 
develop their vision for decarbonisation, levelling up, growth and inclusion through a 
progressive partnership for devolution. This approach is set out in a comprehensive 

set of long-term integrated strategic plans with clear commitments to the outcomes. 
The CRSTS provides crucial funding to support the delivery of the plans, with a specific 

focus on bringing forward investments set out in the GM Five Year Transport Delivery 
Plan (2021-26) 
 

The overarching strategic plan is the Greater Manchester Strategy, which sets out the 
comprehensive ambitions for health, wellbeing, work and jobs, housing, transport,  

skills, training and economic growth across GM.  
 
In so far as the Council’s strategy for dealing with the various maintenance challenges 

it faces as part of the CRSTS, under Part V of the Highways Act 1980(“the Act”) the 
Council acting in its capacity as the highway authority, shall have general and express 

Page 9



 8 

powers in relation to any highway maintainable at public expense by them, any work 
for the improvement of the highway other than the work of lighting which is expressly 
provided for under Section 97 of the Act. 

 
Under s41(1) of the Act the authority who are for the time being the highway authority 

for a highway maintainable at the public expense are under a duty subject to 
subsections (2) and (4) to maintain the highway. Subsection (2) and (4) do not apply 
to the proposals contained within this report.  

  
Under s329 of the Act ‘maintenance’ includes repair. 

  
The highway authority is acting within its powers. However, failure to maintain the 
highway may have adverse implications. The proposals in the report for the 

programmes, once finalised scheme details within each of the specified categories of 
work have been submitted, will strengthen the Council’s position in defending 3rd party 

highway/tripping claims. Whilst it is legally accepted that it is not possible to maintain 
the highway completely free of all defects, section 58 of the Highways Act 1980 
provides a possible defence to a claim if it can adequately show that there was a 

sufficiently robust regime in place to inspect and maintain the highway provided it is 
adequately carried out and the Council had no prior knowledge of the defect before an 

alleged incident. The proposed schemes will also improve road safety, 
pedestrian/public safety, and encourage the further use of safer cycle routes. 
 

In relation to some of the proposals, no doubt Traffic Regulation Orders will be required 
as part of scheme delivery. These should not give rise to any legal implications 
provided the works are carried out in accordance with the appropriate statutory 

requirements set out in the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, and any proposed 
dropped crossings can be introduced without delay because no Traffic Regulation 

Order is required. To ensure all users have the ability to safely access and use dropped 
crossing facilities that the Council has installed, the Council has powers subject to 
exemptions under the Traffic Management Act 2004 to fine and remove vehicles that 

are parked at dropped crossings within any special enforcement area. However, the 
Council must ensure that the public are aware of the new restrictions before starting 

enforcement. 
 
When considering delivery of any scheme or project, when commissioning contracts 

for the procurement of goods, services or works the City Council must comply with the 
requirements of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual 

Standing Orders (CSO’s), Financial Regulations, and duties of Best and Social Value.  
  
Depending on the value of the works to be undertaken under the various schemes as 

part of the CRSTS Highways Maintenance Programme as set out in the body and 
appendix of the report, the Council may appoint contractors under relevant lots of the 

recently established Minor Civils Framework in line with the procedures specified. 
Other routes to market such as alternative frameworks or a standalone contract 
procurement process may also be considered, depending on the most appropriate in 

the circumstances, and CSO’s/PCR should be followed in those circumstances. 
 

Page 10



 9 

Should the value of any such individual project exceed £150,000, a separate report 
will need to be presented to Procurement Board for approval, otherwise Strategic 
Director may approve. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Hollie Faulkner Senior Accountant 

The above report sets out the difficulties being faced and the causes for the rising 
costs within the construction industry.  To mitigate the financial impact the original 

CRSTS Programme is being reduced and reprioritised.  There are currently no direct 
financial implications because the proposed expenditure for the schemes listed will 
be subject to approval on a case-by-case basis. The £4.5m is being funded from the 

approved CRSTS funding settlement with the remaining schemes identified in Annex 
A held in reserve. As noted above the project team will continue to work to minimise 

risk exposure and costs on the projects with the scheme contractors and suppliers.   

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Heather Stanton, Category 
Manager ext 6241 
There are no procurement implications with regards this report at this time however, 

once the projects have been finalised procurement will be assisting the Team in 
delivering as per SCC standing orders and PCR’s 2015. 

 
As part of the Council’s Innovate program and budget challenges, the Team should 
consider efficiencies and enhanced contract management KPI’s as part of this 

procurement activity.  
 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Steve Hulme – Strategic HR & OD Manager 

 
There have been significant challenges for the Council and all other sectors over the 

past few years. This is for several reasons, including the impact of the COVID-19 
pandemic and an unstable economic climate. Salford City Council has not been 
immune to these challenges and has experienced a marked increase year on year in 

staff turnover as well as problems filling vacancies, particularly for specialist positions 
and senior officer posts which in turn can have a detrimental impact on service 
delivery as it affects the capacity and capability to deliver quality services for 

residents and businesses.  
 

These problems have been exacerbated by the offering of more competitive pay 
rates by similar and neighbouring local authorities, leading to many staff seeking 
similar positions elsewhere.  

 
To rectify these issues, the council has undertaken a fundamental review of its 

remuneration strategy, and this has resulted in a revised pay model being developed 
which is to be implemented in April 2023. This will allow for the installation of 
competitive salaries with other similar public bodies in order to attract a high calibre 

Page 11



 10 

of talent required to deliver high quality services which is indicative of Salford’s strong 
ethos of equality within its workplace culture. 

 
 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Chris Smith 
 

The CRSTS funding is targeted at maintaining and improving Greater Manchester’s 
transport network with a focus on maintenance and improvements to support 
sustainable travel modes. The programme will contribute to delivering more attractive 

opportunities for Salford residents to travel using sustainable modes helping to 
reduce the carbon impact of travel in Salford. 

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: None 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: Chris Smith Contact via teams  

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: All 

  

Page 12



 11 

ANNEX 1 Strategic Highways Maintenance – Key Route Network Funding Priorities 
 

Road Name 
Road 
Class 

Limits 
Treatment 

District 
Estimate 

Priority 
From To 

Trafford Road A5683 M602 RA Trafford Bdy Resurface £700,000 1 

East Lancs Rd A580 Broad St Irlam of the Heights RA Resurface £395,200 2 

Walkden Rd/Memorial Rd A575 High St M60 Micro £356,405 3 

Bolton Rd/Worsley Rd North A575 High St Bolton Bdy Micro £239,400 4 

Bentcliffe Way/Corporation Rd A57 Liverpool Rd Gilda Brook Rd Resurface £377,910 5 

High St A6 Manchester Rd East Manchester Rd Surface Course £215,116 6 

Liverpool Rd A57 Corporation Rd  M60 RA Surface Course £473,290 7 

Church St/Irwell Pl A57 Bentcliffe Way Corporation Rd Surface Course £107,800 8 

Gilda Brook Rd/Centenary Way A576 M602 RA Trafford Bdy Resurface £703,494 9 

Manchester Rd A6 High St Chorley Rd Micro £356,195 10 

Chorley Rd A6 Manchester Rd Worsley Rd A572 Patch & Surface Dress £135,838 11 

Bolton Rd A666 Manchester Rd Broad St Micro £367,323 12 

Reserve schemes:       Sub Total £4,427,970   
Broughton Rd, Cromwell Rd, Cheetham St 
West A576 Broad St St James Rd Patch & Surface Dress £228,177 13 

Bury Old Rd (Salford) A665 Crescent Rd Bury Bdy Patch & Surface Dress £94,860 14 

Bury New Rd A56 Appian Way Mayfield Rd Bury Bdy Patch & Surface Dress £205,129 15 

Worsley Rd A572 East Lancs Rd  Worsley Brow Patch & Surface Dress £239,122 16 

Eccles Old Road A576 Tootal Drive Half Edge Lane Resurface £TBC 17 

              

 

P
age 13



E:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\5\4\AI00053452\$aqltzufr.doc 

   
PART 1 

 
ITEM NO.  
 

  

 

REPORT OF THE STATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE  
 

 

TO  
TO PROPERTY AND REGENERATION  

                                     

                                    FOR DECISION ON 13th February 2023 

 
TITLE:  REVISION OF RENTAL AND DISPOSAL CHARGES FOR GARDENS, 

GARAGE SITES AND MINOR RIGHTS OF WAY/ACCESS AGREEMENTS. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
That the Deputy City Mayor approves: 
 

1. The proposed revision of rental charges as follows: 
 

Gardens  £75.00 per annum minimum, rising to £150.00+ per annum, 
based upon plot size.  Full details are shown at Table A. 

 
Garages £75.00 per annum (Single plot)  
 £150.00 per annum (Double plot) 

 
Right of access/way £75.00 per annum minimum 

 
For existing tenants, the rental increases for garden and garage tenancies 
are to be phased in over a two-year period. 
 

2. The proposed revision of the basic disposal rate for garden tenancies from 

£16 per square metre to a minimum of £35 per square metre. 
 

3. Future disposals to be based on the grant of 125 yr long leasehold interests. 
 

4. The proposed increase of administrative charges to £75 for new lettings and 

£250 for disposals. 
 

5. To note and approve the intention to move all existing garden tenancies 

agreements onto the current standard garden lettings terms document. 
 

6. Note the proposal to revise rental and sales figures every 5 years which will 
be the subject of future reports to the Deputy City Mayor. 
 

Page 14

Agenda Item 3b



E:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\5\4\AI00053452\$aqltzufr.doc 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
This report sets out proposals to introduce new rental and disposal charges for 

gardens, garage sites and minor rights of way/access located throughout the City.   
The former Management Services Committee approved the current scale of charges 

in 1995.  Since that time, disposal and rental charges have fallen well behind open 
market values and there is now a need for a fundamental review of the charging 
arrangements.  Comparable evidence to support the proposal has been gathered 

following investigations with local authorities. 
 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  N/A 

 

 

KEY DECISION: YES  
 

 
DETAILS:  

 
1.0 Background 

  
1.1 Throughout the City there are around 120 plots of land held on tenancies/ 

short term leases, granted for use as extensions to private domestic 
gardens, tenancies for the erection of a private garage(s) and agreements 

for rights of way/access across Council land.   
Requests are also received from members of the public to rent or buy land 

for garden extensions. Decisions regarding these matters are generally  
taken by officers within the current delegated arrangements but this does not 
include any sales on land that is classified as green belt land. 

 
1.2 

 
 
 

 
 

This review has been triggered as part of the ongoing commercial review of 

the Councils asset portfolio and reflects the need to bring the current 
charging arrangements to a level that reflects current values and the rise in 
values since 1995 when the last review was undertaken. The review will 

impact the Circa 120 existing rental arrangements in place and all future 
rental and sales proposals. 
 

1.3 In relation to all tenancies, rights of way and sales a check list is undertaken 
prior to any transaction to ensure that the land is suitable for either the sale 
or grant of a tenancy/right. This includes an engagement with relevant 

officers of the Council to ensure that any sale or right granted does not 
compromise other council objectives including operational needs, policy 

requirements or regeneration objectives. 
  
2.0 

 
2.1 

Details 

 
Garden, Garage Rights of Way and access tenancy charges 

  
   Table A, below, shows comparable evidence gathered following consultation 

with other local authorities.  

Page 15



E:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\5\4\AI00053452\$aqltzufr.doc 

  

Table A COMPARABLE EVIDENCE 

                        GARDEN TENANCIES 

Manchester City Council All garden tenancies now sold by way of 125yr 
leases for a premium payment 

Bury Minimum of £75 per annum 

Wigan  Between £60-£100 per annum only to protect from 
adverse possession rather than for income 

  

  

                          GARAGE PLOT TENANCIES  

Rochdale  Single plot £106 per annum 

 Double plot £212 per annum 

Tameside Single plot £75 per annum 

   

Bury  Single plot £55 per annum 

   

Table B, below, shows the current and proposed charges for gardens, 
garage plots and rights of access/way in Salford.  
For existing tenants, the rental increases for garden and garage tenancies 

are to be phased in over a two-year period.   
Example, garden tenancy at a current rent of £25 per annum is reviewed to 

£75 per annum.  The rent to be demanded as £50 per annum for first year 
and £75 per annum for the second year. 
 
Table B    GARDEN TENANCY – STANDARD RATES 

Area m2 Current Annual Rental  Area m2 Proposed             

0 – 21  £25    0 – 50  £75 minimum        

22 – 42  £30    51 – 60  £90                        

43 – 63  £35    61 – 70  £105                      

64 – 84  £40    71 - 80  £120                  

85 – 125 £48    81 - 90  £135                  

Over 126 by negotiation   91 – 100 £150                      

      Over 101           by negotiation 

NB – In relation to all garden tenancies, a tenancy will only be considered if the use of the 
land as a garden tenancy does not conflict with other council priorities. 

 GARAGE PLOT TENANCIES – STANDARD RATES                      

Plot size Current Annual Rental  Plot size Proposed  

Single plot £30    Single plot £75                        

Double plot £45    Double plot £150                      

 

 MINOR RIGHTS OF ACCESS/WAY – STANDARD RATES 

 Current Annual Rental  £30-£50                          Proposed £75 Min 

                    
   

  

Page 16



E:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\5\4\AI00053452\$aqltzufr.doc 

2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Garden extension disposal charges 
 

The current basic rate for disposal of land for garden extensions is £16 per 
square metre and this report requests approval to increase the basic 

disposal rate to a minimum of £35 per square metre. 
 
Each disposal needs to be viewed on its own merits and there will inevitably 

be future cases where a rate different to £35 per square metre will need to 
be applied. For example - There could be a case for the use of a lower figure  

for plots that would otherwise create a maintenance liability and nuisance for 
the Council and other residents if the land was un-tenanted. Equally where a 
garden sale adds significant value to a property or creates development 

potential value a higher price will be justified.  
 

In all garden sale discussions it is essential that the increase in property/ 
development value is considered so that the Council secures an appropriate 
disposal value. 

 
Table C shows current and proposed charges for disposals for garden 

extensions. 
 

Table C DISPOSAL OF GARDEN LAND – BASIC RATES 

Current rate 
 

£16 per square metre       Proposed minimum £35 per square metre  

NB – all garden sales will be considered in terms of value added to the adjoining property 

and any development value 

 

Table D shows comparable evidence gathered following consultation with 
other local authorities and methodology behind the proposal. 
 

Table D COMPARABLE EVIDENCE 

DISPOSAL OF LAND FOR GARDEN EXTENSION – BASIC RATES 

Manchester  Sold on 125-year leases for a premium  

Wigan £30 - £50 per square metre 

Bury  £30 - £42 per square metre 
 

2.2.1 

 

Sale lease term 

 
It is proposed that future disposals be completed by granting of 125-year 
leasehold interests.  The adoption of this standard practice is to protect the 

Council’s position regarding covenants on the subject land. 
 

2.3 Administration charges. 

 
It is proposed to increase the existing administrative charges to: 

 
New garden tenancy                               £75 (currently £50)     

New garage tenancy                               £75 (currently £50)         
Other new minor tenancy                        £75 (currently £50)     
Renewal of agreements/all categories    £nil   

Disposal of garden land                          £250 (currently £150 to £250) 
 

Page 17



E:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\5\4\AI00053452\$aqltzufr.doc 

Additional legal costs are payable for disposals, set by Legal in each case as 
necessary. 
 

2.4 Recommendation for existing tenants to purchase garden land, where 

this would not conflict with Council proposals. 

The garden rent review exercise provides the opportunity for existing tenants 
to potentially acquire the land they rent and it I proposed that this be 

supported as long as a sale would not compromise other Council objectives. 
 

2.5 Frequency of revision of overall rates 

It is now proposed to revise the standard rental and disposal charges every 
5 years to ensure the City Council is in line with other Local Authorities 

charges/open market values. 
  

  

  

  

  
  
3.0 Conclusion 

 

3.1   The increases in charges will ensure that rental and sale prices are brought 

up to realistic market levels and will result in additional revenue for the 
Council.  For existing tenants, the rental increases will be phased in over a 

two-year period. 
 
Where appropriate, the option for existing tenants to purchase rather than 

rent garden land will be pursued. Where appropriate, this would achieve 
capital receipts for the Council in favour of relatively small annual rental 

receipts diluted by associated administration costs.   
 

 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  Community wellbeing.  Making best use and achieving 

best value of Council Assets. 
 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  N/A 
 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  Low 
 

 
SOURCE OF FUNDING: The proposals will generate additional rental income for 

the City Council reflecting the current value of the assets. 
 

Page 18



E:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\5\4\AI00053452\$aqltzufr.doc 

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:   
Supplied by   Shared Legal Service 

 
The Council is under an obligation pursuant to Section 123 of the Local Government 

Act 1972 in respect of a disposal to obtain the best consideration reasonably 
obtainable taking into consideration all monetary and commercial factors. 
 

Provided that any disposals are at market value and accord with the requirements of 
Section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972 there are no adverse legal 

implications. 
 
Prior to the disposal of any land detailed investigations will need to be undertaken in 

respect of each site to ascertain how the sites are held and whether any statutory 
consents  will be required to such intended disposal  

 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by Gemma Singleton, Senior Accountant Tel: 

0161 793 2578 
 
The revision of rental and disposal charges for gardens, garage sites and minor 

rights of way/access agreements will result in additional revenue income for the 
Council and ensure that rental and sale prices are brought up to realistic market 
levels.  For existing tenants, the rental increases will be phased in over a two-year 

period. 
 

The option for existing tenants to purchase rather than rent garden land will be 
pursued, this would result in increased capital receipts for the Council.   
 

 

 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

Sustainable Regeneration:    
Environment:   

Procurement and HR  No implications   

 
CONTACT OFFICER:  Lindsey Aylett TEL. NO.07766550136 
 

 

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):   All 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 19



 1 

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No. 

 
 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 

 
 

TO THE CITY MAYOR’S REGENERATION  
 

                                          DECISION - 13th March 2023 

 

TITLE: DISPOSAL OF LAND AT HANOVER COURT, HIGHER BROUGHTON 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
The City Mayor is recommended to: 

 
Note the proposals detailed below on the terms as set out in the body of this report 
and on the detailed terms set out in an accompanying Part 2 report for approval 

elsewhere on the agenda. 
 

1. Approve the disposal of land at Hanover Court, Broughton on the terms 
contained in this report. 
 

2. Delegate authority to the Strategic Director of Place and the Section 151 
officer to negotiate and finalise the commercial arrangements and all other 
necessary ancillary agreements to allow the completion of the arrangements 

as detailed in this report 
 

3. Authorise the City Solicitor to progress and complete the associated legal 
formalities and the taking of all steps required to give effect to the above 
recommendations 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

 
Hanover Court, a 16 storey residential tower block, was demolished in 2005 and the 
site has been vacant since this date. 

 
The site is a Housing asset but corporately a decision was taken to hold the land for 

potential future LEA education use. Following a review of Pupil Place Planning data, 
Children’s Services have confirmed that the site is no longer required for locally 
maintained schools. 

 
Beis Yaakov High School (Academy status), which occupies the adjacent site, had 

previously indicated that they were looking to expand the school and expressed an 
interest in acquiring the Hanover Court site to support future school expansion. A 

Page 20

Agenda Item 4b



 2 

deliverable proposition did not however come to fruition and the school were advised 
that the Council would be considering alternative options for the site. 
 

More recently a local Community Group approached the Council regarding a 
proposal to develop the Hanover Court site as a multi-purpose community hub 

together with specialist housing to be built to the specific requirements of Jewish 
residents.  
 

Members were consulted and were supportive of the grant of a six month exclusivity 
period to enable 1:1 negotiations to take place. The exclusivity also provided the 

Community Group time to develop their proposal further. The exclusivity expired in 
February 2022.  
 

Heads of Terms have now been provisionally agreed associated with the disposal to 
the Community Group, by way of 250 year lease, for which approval is now sought. 

 
To ensure transparency and that best value can be demonstrated an independent 
assessment of market value has been undertaken and the Community Group have 

confirmed that the valuation is agreed and Market Value will be paid.  

 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: Not applicable 

 

 

KEY DECISION: YES 

 

1.0 BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 Hanover Court, a 16 storey residential tower block, was demolished in 2005 
and the site has been vacant since this date. The site (shown edged red at 
Appendix 1) is recorded as Housing asset on the Council’s Asset Register but 

corporately a decision was taken at the time to hold the land for potential 
future LEA education use, although a formal appropriation was not 

undertaken.  
 
1.2 Children’s Services, following a review of Pupil Place Planning data, have 

confirmed that the site is no longer required for Locally Maintained schools 
and Property Services have been considering options for the site against a 

backdrop of competing demands and council drivers. 
 

1.3 The site clearly has the potential to support housing delivery in the city either 

through Derive, an RSL or private sector developer partner and from a market 
value perspective we consider that residential use of the site would generate 

the highest potential land value. 
 

Page 21



 3 

1.4 Given its location however the site has received attention from local Jewish 
organisations with outline propositions coming forward to meet specific local 
needs.  

 
1.5 Beis Yaakov High School (BYHS) (Academy status), which occupies the 

adjacent site, has previously indicated that they were looking to expand the 
school and expressed an interest in acquiring the Hanover Court site to 
support future school expansion. 

 
1.6 Without prejudice discussions commenced with the school to develop the 

proposition in further detail. A deliverable proposition did not however come to 
fruition and the school were advised in October 2020 that the Council would 
be considering alternative options for the site 

 
1.7 In November 2020 a community group approached the Council regarding a 

proposal to develop the Hanover Court site as a multi-purpose community hub 
(which would work in partnership with the existing Broughton Hub) together 
with specialist housing to be built to the specific requirements of Jewish 

residents. 
 

1.8 The group acknowledge that the Council has been actively supporting the 
needs of the local area but believe that there are gaps that need to be 
addressed. 

 
1.9 Since 2011 it is estimated that the overall Jewish population rose 25% faster 

than the rate of growth seen in the overall population, in Salford the Jewish 

community has increased by 48% over the same period placing significant 
additional demands on local service infrastructure. 

 
1.10 The area of Higher Broughton has a high concentration of the Charedi Jewish 

Community (also referred as strictly observant). The Charedi Community has 

a high number of large families and would prefer to use internal community 
services rather than mainstream providers. This includes retail shops, health 

and medical services, early years’ childcare, youth services and educational 
settings. 
 

1.11 In addition, over 60% of Charedi families in Salford do not drive or have 
access to a car which means they generally rely on accessing services which 

are close to their homes. They also do not have internet access in their 
homes. 
 

1.12 Subject to Planning the Community Group is proposing to develop the site to 
include:  

 
(i) Community Hub, small retail space and shared workspace for new 

business start-ups, office space for Community Groups and a fitness 

centre with separate facilities for men and women. It is proposed that 

Ezra Care will be the anchor tenant of the Community Centre. Ezra 

Care is a local, established and recognised charity, who provide a 

Page 22



 4 

range of support services for people suffering from illness and work to 

relieve pressure on the NHS by supporting patients both at home and 

in hospitals. Ezra Care have the resources, stability and relationships 

in the Community to oversee the varied usages and to ensure the 

viability of the centre. 

  

(ii) Housing, there is a huge need for housing in the local community. 

The proposal would look to develop between 19 – 23 houses (4/5 
bedroom) the properties will be built to the specific requirements of 

Jewish residents such as providing a Kosher kitchen/ sukkah. The 
vast majority of houses will be made available on an affordable basis  

with a mixture of shared ownership and social rent. 

 

1.13 Members were consulted and were supportive of the grant of a six month 
exclusivity period to enable 1:1 negotiations to take place. The exclusivity also 

provided the Community Group time to develop their proposal further. The 
exclusivity expired in February 2022. 
 

1.14 High level discussions have been held with planners associated with the 
proposal and feedback has been positive. 

 
1.15 The Community Group has undertaken extensive, and fully representative, 

community consultation between July – December 2021 which included 

meetings with local Members, members of Salford’s Orthodox Jewish Forum 
and Community Leaders and Groups. Feedback received by the Community 

Group has been overwhelmingly supportive.  
 
2.0      DETAILS 

 
2.1 The Community Group has instructed an architect to develop their proposal 

further however costs are now escalating, and the Community Group have 
requested assurance that, subject to planning and market value being paid, 
that the Council will agree to a disposal. 

 
2.2 To ensure transparency, and that best value can be demonstrated, an 

independent valuation of the Hanover Court site has been undertaken and the 
Community Group have confirmed that the valuation provided is agreed. 

 

2.3 Heads of Terms associated with the disposal of land at Hanover Court have 
been provisionally agreed and can be found at Appendix 2. Full commercial 

terms can be found in the accompanying Part 2 Report. 
 
2.4 From a property perspective, provided Market Value for the land is secured, 

we consider that this is a worthy proposal given the potential support the 
project will provide for the benefit of the local Jewish community. 

 

2.5 Alternative options would of course include the general marketing of the site, 
with all submitted bids being considered on merit, or the direct delivery of 

housing by the Council / Derive.  With regards to the former such an approach 

Page 23



 5 

would clearly enable the city council to fully test the market and demonstrate 
best value/best price obligations have been achieved.  However property 
services are of the view that the provisionally agreed purchase price is fully 

representative of market value and this position has been endorsed through 
independent valuation advice.   

 
2.6 In respect of service delivery, engagement with housing colleagues has 

indicated that the site is not considered suitable due to the specific 

requirements of Jewish residents (size, kosher kitchen, sukkah etc) who would 
be the most likely occupiers of the residential accommodation in this location. 

 
3.0      RECOMMENDATION 

 

The City Mayor is recommended to: 
 

Note the proposals detailed below on the terms as set out in the body of this report 
and on the detailed terms set out in an accompanying Part 2 report for approval 
elsewhere on the agenda. 

 
1. Approve the disposal of land at Hanover Court, Broughton on the terms 

contained in this report. 
 

2. Delegate authority to the Strategic Director of Place and the Section 151 

officer to negotiate and finalise the commercial arrangements and all other 
necessary ancillary agreements to allow the completion of the arrangements 
as detailed in this report 

 
3. Authorise the City Solicitor to progress and complete the associated legal 

formalities and the taking of all steps required to give effect to the above 
recommendations 

 

 
 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  
 

 Health and Social Care 

 Education and skills 

 Housing 

 Social impact 
 

 
 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  
 
There are no specific equality impact matters following from the proposals contained 

in this report. 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Low 

 

Page 24



 6 

  

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Deborah Scott (Shared Legal Service) 

 

Section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972 enshrines the statutory duty on local 
authorities to achieve best value in the context of land disposals. It says that a local 

authority may dispose of land held by it in any manner it wishes providing it is not for a 
consideration 'less than the best that can reasonably be obtained'. It is also 
Government policy that local authorities and other public bodies should dispose of 

surplus land wherever possible.  

   

The onus is on the local authority to be able to demonstrate that in discharging this 
statutory function it has acted properly, rationally and with due regard to its fiduciary 
duty to avoid the risk of challenge and transactions potentially being set aside by the 

Court. This will involve a robust audit trail including valuation evidence.  
   

A council can be found in breach of section 123 if it has “(i) failed to take proper advice; 
(ii) failed to follow proper advice for reasons that cannot be justified; or (iii) has followed 
advice that was so plainly erroneous that in accepting it the local authority must have 

known, or at least ought to have known, that it was acting unreasonably.”  
   

In this instance the site, following a review of Pupil Place Planning data, is no longer 
required for Locally Maintained schools and is accordingly surplus to Council 
requirements.  Whilst the Council has not marketed the site generally, it has considered 

proposals from Beis Yaakov High School (Academy status), which occupies the 
adjacent site, to support future school expansion. A deliverable proposition did not 
however come to fruition and the school were advised that the Council would be 

considering alternative options for the site.  The proposal from the community group to 
develop the Hanover Court site as a multi-purpose community hub (which would work 

in partnership with the existing Broughton Hub) together with specialist housing to be 
built to the specific requirements of Jewish residents has been considered on the basis 
that there is significant local community need for the additional facilities/activities 

proposed.  The social benefits will assist in providing justification for the proposed 
disposal should a challenge materialise and in addition, an independent valuation has 

been undertaken and the Community Group have agreed pay the agreed market value 
for the site. 
 

The Shared Legal Service will work with Council officers in finalising Heads of Terms 
to progress the scheme.   

 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: David R Mills 

 
There is an option to tax on the site so VAT at standard rate (20%) would need to be 

applied to any lease or freehold sale of the property/land. 

Page 25



 7 

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Not applicable 

 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Not applicable 

 

 
MEMBER COMMENTS:  

 

There has been a significant engagement with local members in relation to this 
proposal that culminated in a meeting of relevant ward members on 8th November 

2022. 
 

Most members were supportive of the proposals at that engagement.  
 
Councillor King questioned the need for the gym/recreation elements of the proposal 

given the existing provision within the wider area but was supportive of the other 
aspects of the scheme. 

 
Councillor Walters was not supportive of the proposal and has provided the following 
comments: 

  
“I have serious concerns about this, on the following bases: 

  
1) There is no evidence that sale to this "community group", even at an 
independently-valued sales price would represent best value to the City. 

  
2) There is no evidence that this "Community Hub" etc is supported by the 

community.  
  
3) There is no evidence that the proposed developers/self-appointed Community 

Group have the necessary experience and skill base.  
  

Whilst Affordable Housing (specifically housing suitable for those with disabilities) is 
desperately required and I support this initiative, another Hub, unless skilfully 
designed and managed by suitably qualified persons will become yet another waste 

of urgently-needed Real Estate, which could be fully developed for Affordable 
Housing and/or for educational purposes. 

  
Whilst I am a huge supporter of providing exercise and sport facilities for the 
community (current culturally- appropriate facilities are lacking), and even though I 

believe that there is an intention to place gym facilities in this new Hub, I am not 
convinced that the management have the skills to provide what is required. 

 
I am particularly concerned that self-appointed and unelected “community 
representatives” were claiming to represent the community in delivering a project that 

they had been consulted on and widely agreed to. I dispute that an appropriate 
community consultation has taken place, and despite requesting this be done, this 

request was refused. From extensive discussion with many constituents, I was 

Page 26



 8 

unable to find one person who was even aware of the alleged ‘consultation’ that had 
taken place, and indeed many reacted in horror at the suggestion that Hanover Court 
should be sold off in this way. The view of the community is that school and housing 

are required, not community centres or gyms. 
  

In conclusion, I intend to use every (legal) method available to prevent this from 
happening, up to and including Judicial Review. I am now taking independent legal 
advice, and shall be instructing counsel, at my own expense, as appropriate. 

  
As previously mentioned, I would expect significant community opposition at the 

planning stage too”.  
 
 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  Not applicable 

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: None 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: Angela Martens  TEL NO: 779 6077 

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Kersal and Broughton Park 

 

Page 27



Unit 8 & 9

Industrial Park
Knoll Street

42
9

392

CURZON ROAD

10

2

1

42
9

b

378
388

42
1

382

20

40
9

13

384

41
1

B
U

R
Y

 N
E

W
 R

O
A

D

8

24

98

88

1 to 19

2 to 22

86

76

MAPLEWOOD COURT

56.3m

Shelter

Newbury Place
Health Centre

C
R

Synagogue

43
5Path (um)

Shelter

69

Beis Yaakov High School

C
liff G

range

57.8m

Issues

416

7

402

400

CLIFF CRESCENT

1
7

12

60.6m

2

43
1

2

Shelter

Car Wash

Brentnall
Community
Primary School

1
3

2

(Sch)

33

Yeshiva L'zeirim

38

44

T
opfields G

rove

Club

11

ESS

HANOVER COURT

BROUGHTON

1.44 Acres

Property
Information Section

Salford Civic Centre
Chorley Road

Salford
M27 5AS

Plan Ref:
Scale @ A4:
Date:
OS Map Ref:

1:1250
30/03/2022
SD8201SE

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of
Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office © Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 100019737 2022

Page 28



APPENDIX 2 

Lessor: 
 

Salford City Council 

Lessee: 

 

Community Group- details TBC 

Description: The Lessor to grant the Lessee a lease of land at Hanover 
Court extending to 1.44 acres and shown edged red on the 
attached plan. 

 

Tenure: 
 

250 years from a date to be agreed.  The City Council’s 
freehold interest is to be transferred to any individual plot 

purchaser at a nil premium as and when a sale completes 
(numbers to be agreed). This will be on the basis that the 
Community Group assign the plot from their leasehold interest, 

leaving the individual owner with an unencumbered freehold 
interest. 

Sub Station: Lease granted subject to: 99 year lease held by Norweb 

(ENWL) wef 1 January 1964 (shown shaded blue on the 
attached plan) 
 

Use: Mixed Use development comprising Community Hub, 

residential dwellings (minimum 50% of the site) built to the 

specific requirements of Jewish residents and ancillary works 

in accordance with Planning. The number of affordable units 

and allocation process to be agreed with the RP who will 

undertake this element of the scheme 

Planning & 
Statutory 

Consents: 

The Lessee to be responsible for obtaining planning and 

other statutory consents that may be required.  

Alienation: The Lessee shall not assign or sub-let the whole or part of 

the Agreement for Lease. 

The Lessee shall not assign or sub-let the whole of the Lease 

without the prior written consent of the Lessor. Sub-letting of 

part shall not be allowed without prior written consent of the 

Lessor. 

The Lessee shall be permitted to sub-let space within the 

Community Hub to satisfy specific requirements of Jewish 
residents. 

 

Services / 
Condition 

The Lessee to bear all costs associated with service 
connections and diversions, if any.  
 

Page 29



Termination: Should the Lessee not fulfil any of the obligations under the 
terms of the Lease, the Lease shall be terminated, and the 
Demise handed back to the Lessor. 

 

Costs: Each party to bear it’s own legal costs and surveyors fees 

connected with the transaction 

The Lessee to be responsible for all statutory costs and taxes 

that may arise from this transaction. 
 

Completion / 

Timescales: 

i) Agreement for Lease to be exchanged within 4 weeks 

following City Mayor approval 

ii) The Lessee to share proposals with the Lessor for 

approval and once approved submit an application for 

full planning consent within 10 weeks from exchange 

of the Agreement for Lease.  

iii) Lease to be completed within 8 weeks following 

receipt of planning consent.  

iv) Development to commence within 3 months following 

completion of the Lease. 

v) Lessee to complete the development within 16 months 

of commencement, with the Lessee acting reasonably. 

 

Charter: The Lessee to sign up to the City Mayor’s Charter for 
Employment Standards. The charter is designed to help raise 

employment standards for employees and businesses across 
the city. 

 

Planning 
Obligations: 

The planning consent to be fully compliant with the Planning 

Obligations SPD (full S.106 obligations).  

Other 
Conditions: 

Any other conditions normally incorporated by the City Council 
in an agreement of this type. 

 

Page 30



PUBLIC INTEREST TEST - CHECKLIST 
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972 

 
 
Name of Report:   

Land at Hanover Court, Broughton 
 

 
Committee: 

Property/Regeneration Briefing   
Date  27 March 2023  

 
Categories of exemption applied:   

 Paragraph 1 Information relating to any individual.  

 Paragraph 2 Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an 
individual. 

 Paragraph 3  Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the Authority holding that information) 

 
 
Public Interest Test Questionnaire 

This is not a definitive list. However, it does provide a series of questions that you 
should ask yourself when recommending confidentiality. 
 

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION 
Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in public 

debate about current issues? 
 
 

No 

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken 

certain decisions?  
 

 

No 

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal 
probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff? 

 
 

No 

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money 
for council taxpayers?  

 
 

No 

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand 

decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives?  
 
 

No 

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public 
safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of 
information which might adversely affect public health and safety)   

 
 

No 

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decision-

making or examples of malpractice? 
 
 

No 

 

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 6a



 
 

 
 

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION 
Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the 

public any useful information? 
 
 

Yes 

Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests, 

without giving the public any useful information?  
 

 

Yes 

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a 
situation? 
 

 

No 

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving the 
public useful information?  

 
 

No 

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or individuals 

at risk?  
 
 

No 

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general would 

benefit more from information being withheld?  
 

  

Yes 

 

Justification of decision 

 

Disclosure before the completion of the transaction would be inappropriate as it 
would disclose confidential information and is likely to adversely affect the 

financial position of the Council and the interested parties. 

Individual names of consultees have been removed as specific consent to 
disclosure has not been obtained. 

Other documents attached: N/A 

 
Name and Title: Angela Martens, Asst Principal Development Surveyor 

Date: 2 March 2023 
 
 

Page 32



Document is Restricted

Page 33

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



PUBLIC INTEREST TEST – CHECKLIST 
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972 

 
 
Name of Report:  Transfer of affordable 

homes developed by the council to 
Dérive RP  

 
Committee:  Dep City Mayor Property & 

Regeneration Briefing  
Date    27th March 2023          

 
Category of exemption applied:  Paragraph 3  ‘ Information relating to the financial 

or business affairs of any particular person (including the Authority holding that 

information ) 
 

 
Public Interest Test Questionnaire 

This is not a definitive list. However, it does provide a series of questions that you 

should ask yourself when recommending confidentiality. 
 

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION 
Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in public 
debate about current issues? 

 
 

No 

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken 
certain decisions?  

 
 

No 

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal 

probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff? 
 
 

No 

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money 
for council taxpayers?  
 

 

No 

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand 
decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives?  

 
 

No 

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public 
safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of 

information which might adversely affect public health and safety)   
 

 

No 

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decision-
making or examples of malpractice? 

 
 

No 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 34

Agenda Item 6b



 

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION 
Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the 
public any useful information? 

 
 

Yes 

Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests, 

without giving the public any useful information?  
 
 

Yes 

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a 

situation? 
 

 

No 

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving the 
public useful information?  

 
 

No 

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or individuals 
at risk?  

 
 

No 

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general would 

benefit more from information being withheld?  
 
  

Yes 

 

Justification of decision 

 

The Council is required by law to generate fair value for the sale of council land and 
assets.  The report contains legal and financial information relating to both the council 

and Dérive RP in relation to the contractual relationships of the transfer of affordable 
housing.   

 

The release of information regarding the financial and legal structure of the sale of 
affordable housing may prejudice the ability to generate fair value and it is not in the 
interests of the public to release this information. 

 

Other documents attached? No 

 

Name and Title:  Dylan Vince, Assets and Development Manager 
 

Date: 27th March 2023 
 

 

Page 35



Document is Restricted

Page 36

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	3a City Region Sustainable Transport Settlement (CRSTS) Update and Strategic Maintenance Fund Priorities
	3b Revision of Rental and Disposal Charges for Gardens, Garage Sites and Minor Rights of Way/Access Agreements
	4b Land at Hanover Court, Broughton (also see Item 6a)
	04aii Appendix A Location Plan
	04aiii Appendix B Heads of Terms Part 1

	6a Land at Hanover Court, Broughton
	06aii Land at Hanover Court, Broughton

	6b Transfer of Affordable Homes to Dérive RP
	06bii Tranfer of Affordable Home to Derive RP


